
City of Stockbridge Purchasing Division__________________________________________________     
City of Stockbridge City Hall  

4640 North Henry Boulevard  

Stockbridge, Ga 30281   

ADDENDUM NO. 2   

Solicitation No:     Invitation To Bid (ITB) No. 2019-00017 

Solicitation Title:  Smith Barnes Sewer Basin Rehabilitation- Phase I 

 ATTENTION ALL POTENTIAL BIDDERS:   

MUST ADDENDUM.  READ CAREFULLY AND FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS.  

  This addendum forms a part of the contract documents, modifies the original bidding documents 

  and shall be as binding as if contained therein.   

   Return Addendum with Bid Submittal.  Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to 

  disqualification.   

   Return Completed Revised Bid Pricing Sheets with Bid Submittal.  

TO ALL PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS, PLEASE NOTE THE FOLLOWING CHANGES AND 

CLARIFICATIONS:  

Words in strikethrough type are deletions from existing text.  Words in bold, underlined type are 

additions to existing text.   

1. The ITB Due Date has not changed.  The ITB Due Date is 2:00 p.m.,EDT  on Friday, June 28, 2019.

ADDITIONS / CLARIFICATIONS / CORRECTIONS  

The following written question(s) and/or requests for clarification were received by the Contracts and 

Procurement Department prior to the deadline submission of questions and are hereby provided and 

answered below: 

x 
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City of Stockbridge Purchasing Division__________________________________________________     
City of Stockbridge City Hall  

4640 North Henry Boulevard  

Stockbridge, Ga 30281  

Q1. I have a question regarding the subject bid. Do we have to submit the section 3 plan forms with 

       the bid or only if we are awarded the bid? 

A1. The Section 3 forms need to be completed and submitted with the Bid Package by any bidder who is 

       seeking certification.  If a bidder is applying for certification this must be completed before the award 

       of the bid. 

Q2. Will the City provide a place for disposal for the project? 

A2. The City will not provide a place for disposal for the project. 

Q3. Could the owner/engineer please clarify when was the last time sewers were cleaned and televised? 

A3. Sewer Cleaning has been on a as needed basis. There are no records of maintenance on the 

       basin.

Q4. Are there any Iron pipes included in the 2,500 LF? If so, can you please add a bid item listed as 

       Mechanical Cleaning per LF? 

A4. Question is not applicable. Line cleaning for PVC, Vitrified Clay, and Ductile Iron only. 

Q5. Will the City provide a drying bed to the contractor to dispose the solids that are removed from the 

       sanitary pipes once decanted from the vacuum truck? If so, what is the location? 

A5. The City will not provide any disposal site. 

Q6. If no drying bed will be provided by the owner, what is a nearby location that will accept the debris? 

A6. The Contractor is responsible for locating disposal sites. 

Q7. Will the owner / engineer allow the contractor to leave the cleared debris onsite for the 20’ wide x 

       2,500’ easement path? If not, will the City provide a location for the contractor to dispose of the 

       cleared debris? 

A7. The Contractor is responsible for clearing all debris.  The Contractor is responsible for 

       locating disposal sites. 
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Q8. Are there any force mains that connect to the lines to be CIPP? 

a. If so, what size force mains? See response A8

b. Which manholes do they dump into? See response A8

c. What flowrates for each force main? See response A8

d. What are the hold-times for each force main? See response A8

A8. No. 

Q9. Will the owner / engineer be able to provide a line segment sheet / maps on the areas that you 

        anticipate on giving in the first release? 

A9. No line segment map is required. Contractor is to determine the schedule for line cleaning. 

Q10. Is GPS required with Mh inspection if so what level? 

A10. GIS survey to State Plane Coordinates is required to determine X, Y, and Z of the manhole tops 

       and inverts. 

Q11. What level Mh inspection is required? 

A11. Reports shall include manhole type, condition, I&I issues, line sizes, materials, and all other 

       pertinent data related to the manhole. 

Q12. Will repairing damaged and or washed out creek crossings or instillation be considered in clearing 

price or separate? 

A12. Contractor responsible for providing any access that will be utilized under the required 

          clearing line item. 

Q13. Would a separate price for heavy cleaning, root removal be considered? 

A13. No. 

Q14. Is there a deposit for water meter?  

A14. The deposit for a hydrant meter is $850.00. Please see attached Hydrant Meter Policy and 

          Application. 

Q15. Is there a dump site available? 

A15. No. Please see responses above 

Q16. The area the city wants cleared will it need a road cut and erosion control if so to what degree 

A16. Specifications state that the subgrade will not be disturbed in the clearing limits, therefor, no 

         E&S requirement. 
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Q17. Can you send out a copy of the sign in sheet 

A17. The Pre-Bid sign-in sheet has been posted to the City and the Georgia Procurement Registry 

website.  

The City of Stockbridge’s website and the State of Georgia Registry is the official location for the 

posting of all solicitation addenda and contract award results.  It is the obligation of each Prospective 

Provider to frequently monitor the City’s website in order to obtain complete and timely information.   

The City’s website is located at https://www.cityofstockbridge.com/default.aspx  

All other terms, conditions, and specifications of the solicitation remain unchanged.  

_________________________________________________________________________________  

Name of Company / Firm / Organization  

____________________________________   ___________________________________________ 

Printed Name of Authorized Rep. / Title Signature of Authorized Representative / Date   
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE FIRE HYDRANT METER APPLICATION 1 

Hydrant Meter Application 
For the use of a fire hydrant meter to supply a temporary water service for construction use or other approved 
temporary uses, the undersigned agrees: 

1. To pay the rate for water consumed plus a minimum charge based on meter size.

2. The meter and backflow device will be installed and removed ONLY by the City of Stockbridge Water
Department.  That the hydrant will be turned on and off by the same Department.  The City provides the
hydrant meter, backflow, shutoff and lock the meter to the hydrant.

3. An eight hundred and fifty ($850.00) dollar deposit, per meter, will be held to cover the above costs
and/or any damage to the city equipment. If damages are found upon inspection of the fire hydrant
meter will be considered the responsibility of the undersigned.

4. Damages will be assessed for materials at the current price and labor at the average hourly rate plus
benefits.

5. The cost of damages will be taken from the deposit and if in excess, the undersigned will be billed for
the remainder.

6. In the case of an emergency, i.e. freezing weather or other necessity, the City may remove the hydrant
meter without notice to the undersigned.

Name: Title: 

Company: Signature: 

Street Address: 

City, State: 

Phone Number: Location: 

Date Needed: Time Needed: 

Air Gap Being Used: (Circle One) Portable     On Truck 

Other? (Please Explain) 

Approved By: Date Approved: 

Hydrant Location: Subdivision: 

Meter #: Make: 

Date Installed: Date Removed: 

Initial Reading: Final Reading: 

Total Water Consumed: Invoice #: 

Charge for use of a hydrant without permission or removal/tampering with backflow: 1st Offense - $500.00; 2nd Offense - 
$750.00; 3rd Offense - $1,000.00. 



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE FIRE HYDRANT METER POLICY 1 

Fire Hydrant Meter Policy 
Failure to comply with the regulations and procedures of this policy will result in the immediate 
suspension of hydrant meter privileges, forfeiture of the hydrant meter deposit and assessment 
of civil penalties 

I. PURPOSE

To establish regulations and procedures regarding the usage and metering of water
from public and private fire hydrants for the purchase of bulk water by any person(s) or
commercial business.

II. GENERAL

All customers must complete a hydrant meter service application at the City of
Stockbridge Utility Billing Office located at 4640 North Henry BLVD Stockbridge, GA
30281.  Our hours of operation are Monday through Friday from 8:00 A.M. until 5:00
P.M.  Hydrant meters will be set Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:30 AM
and 3:00 PM, except holidays.  The application must be accompanied by a deposit per
hydrant meter according to the published fee schedule.  This deposit will be applied to
the final bill.  No cash will be accepted by the City for hydrant meter deposits.

The City of Stockbridge Water Department will determine which fire hydrants will be 
used before the hydrant meter assemblies are installed. Fire hydrants are to be flushed 
before the hydrant meter assembly is installed.  The customer will need to be present 
when the hydrant meter assembly is installed to be given instructions on how to 
operate the assembly. The City of Stockbridge Water Department will turn the fire 
hydrant on when the  hydrant meter is installed and the customer will then use the 
takeoff valve to get water when they need it. The customer will not need a hydrant 
wrench to use a hydrant meter. The customer will need to shut the takeoff valve off 
when the hydrant meter is not being used. 

Only City of Stockbridge hydrant meters with approved backflow prevention devices 
provided by the City may be used to obtain bulk water from a fire hydrant in the City’s 
service area.  The use of any hydrant meter assembly other than those provided by the 
City of Stockbridge will be subject to the issuance of civil penalties.  Customers must 
ensure that the hydrant meter assembly is registering usage and that no leaks are 
present.  Any broken or leaking hydrant meter assembly shall be returned IMMEDIATELY 
to the City of Stockbridge for repair and/or replacement.  Any leaking or broken fire 
hydrants shall be reported IMMEDIATELY.   



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE FIRE HYDRANT METER POLICY 2 

At no time shall any hydrant meter/backflow assembly be disassembled or altered by 
anyone other than City of Stockbridge Water Department staff. 

A chain or vinyl covered cable with a lock will be used to secure the hydrant meter 
assembly to the fire hydrant.  An identification tag will be attached to the assembly to 
know what hydrant meter is assigned to that assembly. 

III. HYDRANT METER RENTAL AND INSTALLATION

The rental of hydrant meter assemblies will include the rental of associated equipment
for the customer’s needs.  Customer must provide the City with service address at the
time of rental.  The customer shall have sole responsibility and risk of loss for said meter
and liability for any damages thereto.  The customer is responsible for DAMAGES to
HYDRANT and/or METER and should contact the City of Stockbridge immediately if the
hydrant is damaged before or after use.  Customers are responsible for the cost of all
hydrant meter repairs or replacement of meter assembly and/or fire hydrant.

The customer will need to give the City of Stockbridge Water Department forty-eight
(48) hours’ notice to install the hydrant meter in the beginning. The customer will need
to give the Water Department twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to move the hydrant
meter to another hydrant or remove the hydrant meter when they are finished. There
will not be a charge to install the hydrant meter the first time, but there will a fifty
($50) fee every time a customer wants the hydrant meter moved or removed when
they are finished with the hydrant meter. Hydrant meters will be installed, moved or
removed by Water Department personnel only. The customer will be responsible for the
hydrant meter until it is picked up.

The customer shall comply with all regulations and requirements regarding rental and 
use of meter.  If the customer is found in violation of this policy, use of the hydrant 
meter will be SUSPENDED and the customer could be subject to a three-hundred 
($300.00) dollar fine. 

IV. BILLING

1. Customers will be billed on a monthly cycle by the City of Stockbridge for all
water usage according to the published fee schedule.  The customer is
responsible for providing the meter reading to the Utility Billing Department at
(770) 389-7901. on the tenth (10th) day of the month.  It is the responsibility of
the customer to notify the Utility Billing Department when the meter is not
registering and/or recording the water usage.  If readings are not received by the
tenth (10th) day of the month it will result in a ten (10%) penalty or loss of
hydrant meter.  Failure to report readings for two (2) consecutive months will
result in a fifty ($50) dollar per month penalty to be deducted from the deposit
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at the end of the rental period.  Continued failure to report meter readings in a 
timely manner for billing or accounts that are not paid in full will result in the 
loss of hydrant meter privileges, forfeiture of hydrant meter deposits and 
permanent closing of the hydrant meter account with the City.  The customer 
agrees that the rates and fees in effect at the time the meter is returned shall be 
used to calculate the amount due from the meter rental and water consumption. 

2. All commercial backflow assemblies must be tested yearly.  Therefore, all
hydrant meter rental units shall be returned to the City of Stockbridge Water
Department for renewal of the hydrant meter account and for annual backflow
testing.  Each yearly rental must be renewed within the month of the original
rental period.

3. Upon return of the hydrant meter assembly and associated equipment, deposits
shall be refunded to the customer.  The cost of repairs or replacement for the
hydrant meter, backflow assembly and missing or damaged accessories will be
deducted from the deposit prior to any refund being processed.  Deposits shall
be refunded to the customer within thirty (30) days, provided all of the following
has occurred:

a. Hydrant meter assembly and associated equipment have been returned
in good working condition, with no excessive wear or damage.

b. Customer has paid for any damaged and/or missing equipment.

c. All outstanding water usage and rental charges for the hydrant meter
assembly have been paid in full by the customer.

V. FEES

1. Hydrant Meter Deposit $850.00 

2. Minimum Bill Base Charge Based on Meter Size 

VI. WATER TRUCKS, TANKS, CONTAINERS, ETC.

1. All water trucks, tanks, containers, etc. MUST be inspected by the Water
Superintendent and/or their representative for potential cross connections
before they are filled.
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VII. WATER RESTRICTIONS

All hydrant meters may be subject to immediate recall/return in the event of the
implementation of the Water Shortage Response Plan.

No meter shall be used unless the temperature is thirty-five (35°) degrees Fahrenheit or
above and rising.  When the temperature falls to thirty-five (35°) degrees Fahrenheit,
the fire hydrant will be closed and the hydrant meter disconnected by City of
Stockbridge Water Department staff.  Both the fire hydrant and hydrant meter can be
damaged if used when the temperature is below freezing.




